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EXPENDITURES IN THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.

CoMMITTEE ON EXPENDITURES IN THE
Post OFFIcE DEPARTMENT,
House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
Friday, August 4, 1911.
The committee met at 10 o’clock a. m.
Present: Representatives Ashbrook (chairman), Alexander, Red-
field, McCoy, Austin, Slemp, and Towner.

TESTIMONY OF HON. RUSSELL P. GOODWIN, ASSISTANT ATTOR-
NEY GENERAL FOR THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.

The witness was duly sworn by the chairman.)

he CuairmaN. I will state to the committee and to Judge Good-
win that, acting upon the advice of the committee, I addressed a
letter on August 1 to Hon. Russell P. Goodwin, Assistant Attorney
- General, Post Office Department, Washington, D. C., as follows:

AvgusT 1, 1911,
Hon. RusseLL P. GooDWIN,
Asgistant Attorney General, Post Office Department, Washington, D. C.

Dear MR. GoopwIN: This committee has had repeated demands for an in-
vestigation of the Dr. Mixer Cancer Cure Concern, of Hastings, Mich.

Before deciding to investigate this case, the committee desires to have you
and the expert in the pure-food bureau of the Agricultural Department appear
before the committee and explain upon what grounds the fraud order was
issued.

The committee would therefore like to have you and the pure-food expert
appear before it on Friday next, August 4, at 10 o’clock a. m., with the nec-
essary Iinformation and documents, and will thank you upon receipt of this
letter to advise the committee whether or not it will be possible for you to be
present at the date above mentioned.

Very respectfully,
WILLIAM A. ASHBROOK,
Chairman Committcc Expenditures Post Office Departmnent.

To this letter I received the following acknowledgment from the
Acting Postmaster General:

PosT OFFICE DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE POSTMASTER GENERAL,
Washington, D. C., August 2, 1911.
Hon. WILLIAM A. ASHBROOK, .
Chairman Committee on Erpenditures
in the Post Office Department,
House of Representatives, Washington, D. C.

My DEAR MR. ASHBROOK : Your letter of the 1st instant, addressed to the
Assistant Attorney General for the Post Office Department, requesting him to
appear before you with the necessary information and documents in the case
of Drs. Mixer, of Hastings, Mich., at 10 o’clock a. m. on Friday, August 4, has
been brought to my attention. Judge Goodwin will appear before you at the
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time mentioned with the files in the case. I am informed that there were
present at the fraud order hearing Dr. L. F. Kebler, chief, Division of Drugs,
Dr. C. H. Kimberly, assistant chemist, and Dr. F. P. Morgan, all of the De-
partment of Agriculture. The Department of Agriculture has been communi-
cated with, and stated that Dr. Kebler and Dr. Morgan will appear before
you at the time indicated. Dr. Kimberly, however, is at present in Detroit,
Mich., and will not be called in from there unless you should indicate a desire
that that should be done.

Respectfully, C. P. GRANDFIELD,
Acting Postmaster General.

Then, Judge Goodwin, as indicated to you in the letter addressed
to you on the 1st, I wish to repeat that there have been repeated
complaints on the part of a good many people throughout the coun-
try, complaining against a fraud order that was issued against Drs.
ixer. This committee, before reaching any conclusion in the mat-
ter, deemed it would be advisable to ask you to appear before the
committee and explain to the committee upon what grounds this
fraud order was issued. No opportunity has been given Drs. Mixer
to appear before the committee, and the hearing this morning will
be in the nature of a preliminary inquiry along the lines mentioned.
We would be glad to have you inform the committee on what grounds
and upon whose complaints this fraud order was issued.

Mr. Goopwin. I do not know that I can tell you on whose com-
plaint the order was issued.

The CuairmaN. Do you know whether there were any complaints
against this company, that it was a fraud, or that people were being
defrauded by the company?

Mr. GooowiN. I know that there was a complaint by Dr. Morgan.

The CuairmanN. Who was he?

Mr. Goopwin. This gentleman right here [indicating], of the De-
partment of Agriculture. Whether there were other complaints I
do not know ; that is, I donot remember. The papers areall here and
it is possible there are other complaints in the files. I could not tell
you without looking through the files. The best way I think I can
answer your question as to the grounds on which the fraud order was
issued is by reading this memorandum.

The CHalRMAN. We would be very glad to have you read it.

Mr. Goopwin. That is the best way I can answer it; the most
succinct way, and I think the most satisfactory way. This is a
memorandum prepared at my office and signed by me, transmitted to
the Postmaster General, recommending the issuance of the fraud
order. It is dated January 11, 1910, and is as follows:

Mcmorandum for the Postmaster General in re Drs. Mixzer, Haatings, Mich.

PosT OFFICE DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENEBAL,
Washington, January 11, 1910.
On November 4 last Drs. Mixer were cited to show cause why a fraud order
should not be issued. December 10 was fixed as date for the hearing, but the
departient later changed the date of the hearing to the 4th instant. On that
date a full hearing was had in the matter, at which were present Mr. C. W.
Mixer, proprietor of the business done under the name of Drs. Mixer,.and his
attorney, Mr. P. T. Colgrove. Congressman E. L. Hamilton, of Michigan, was

also present during a portion of the hearing and made some remarks in behalf
of the defendant,

The charges in this case are:
“It is charged that under the name set out above, at the post office at
Hastlings, Mich., there is being conducted a certain scheme for otaining money
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through the mails by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,
and promises, which said scheme is in substance as follows:

“ Advertisements are published in newspapers soliciting the general public
and those persons who may believe themselves afflicted with cancer to open
communication by mail with Drs. Mixer, at Hastings, Mich. To said persons
so answering said advertisements there are mailed certain printed letters, cir-
culars, pamphlets, and leaflets soliciting the persons to whom they are so sent
to remit various sums of money for certain medical treatment to cure them of
the disease known as cancer, said treatment to consist of certain medicines to
be sent to said persons so afflicted with said disease at their homes and to be
used by them at their homes for the cure aforesaid; and it is further a part of
said fraudulent scheme to pretend to said persons that if they will write
answers to the questions set out on a certain printed question blank furnished
for the purpose by said advertisers and mail the same to said advertisers at
Hastings, Mich., said advertisers can by said means make a proper and accurate
diagnosis of the conditions of said persons, and will advise said persons of
their conditions. It is also a part of said fraudulent scheme that if said per-
sons so mail to said advertisers said written answers, sald advertisers in most
instances mail to said persons certain communications purporting to be true
and accurate diagnoses of the cases of said persons, and representing to said
persons that they are suffering from cancer and that their condition is such
that it may be cured by the treatment of said advertisers.

“ Whereas said scheme is one to defraud said persons and to obtain from
them money through the mails by means of false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations, and promises and without sald advertisers intending honestly
and in good faith to treat and cure said patients of said disease or to endeavor
so to do, and without the belief that they can treat and cure said persons of
said disease, and well knowing that thelr said treatment is incapable of curing
said persons of said disease in manner and form as pretended; and

‘“ Whereas in fact said pretended dingnosis is a mere fraudulent device to
deceive said persons, and in truth said advertisers have not made any true
diagnosis and well know that they can not do so by said method and without
any honest understanding of the conditions of said persons and without the
belief that they can cure said persons of cancer by said treatment fraudulently
use said pretended diagnosis merely as a device to deceive and mislead said
persons, and thereby to m(luce them to order of and pay said advertisers for
said treatment.”

The defense, speaking generally, admitted the use of the mails for the sale of
medical treatment to cure cancer, as alleged, but denied that Mr. Mixer acted
with fraudulent intent, and contended that his actions were purified avith good
faith and the belief that his meditines and treatment were capable of pro-
ducing the result he claimed for them. A lengthy written answer was submitted
by the defendant and the same is hereto attached.

Dr. L. F. Kebler, Chief Division of Drugs; Dr. C. H. Kimberly, assistant
chemist; and Dr. F. F. Morgan, of the Department of Agriculture, were, by
request, present at the hearing. Dr. Morgan testified that under the name of
L. F. Kay, he, in July, 1909, opened correspondence with Drs. Mixer, of Hast-
ings, Mich,, about their ‘ cure for cancer”; that he received in reply the
various letters, booklets, and printed matter, which he submitted; that he sub-
witted to them an outline of the trouble which they diagnosed as cancer; and
that he paid them by mail $11.80 for medicines to cure his case; that he received
by express in August last the medicines sent for this remittance, and he pro-
duced the same at the hearing. The newspaper advertisement published by -
Drs. Mixer and which was submitted by Dr. Morgan and reads as follows:

‘““ THE SAD STORY OF MY FATHER'S GREAT SUFFERING FROM CANCER—READ THE FOL-
LOWING AND BE CONVINCED—WE CAN CURE YOU.

[Cut representing elderly man with nose eaten off by cancer, and cut of Mr. C. W. Mixer,
entitled ¢ Father and Son.”}

“ Forty-five years ago my father, who was himself a doctor, had a vicilous
cancer that was eating away his life. The best physicians in America could
do nothing for him. After nine long years of awful suffering, and after
the cancer had totally eaten away his nose and portions of his face (as shown
in his picture here given) his palate was entirely destroyed, together with
portions of his throat. Father fortunately discovered the great remedy that
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c;xred him. This was over 40 years ago; and he has never suffered a day
since.

“This same discovery has now cured thousands who were threatened with
operation and death. We will give their sworn statement that this is the
truth. Doctors, lawyers, mechanics, ministers, laboring men, bankers, and all
calsses recommend this glorious life-saving discovery, and we want the whole
world to benefit by it.

‘“ Have you cancer, tumors, ulcers, abscesses, fever sores, goiter, catarrh,
salt rheum, rheumatism, piles, eczema, scald head, or scrofula in any form?

“We positively guarantee our statements true; perfect satisfaction and
honest service—or money refunded.

‘It will cost you nothing to learn the truth about this wonderful home
treatment without knife or caustic. And if you know anyone who is afflicted
with any disease above mentioned, you can do them a Christian act of kindness
by sending us their addresses so we can write them how easily they can be
cured in their own home. This is no idle talk; we mean just what we say. We
have cured others and can cure you. Forty years’ experience guarantees suc-
cess, Write us to-day; delay is dangerous. Illustrated booklet free.

‘“ DRS. MIXEBR,
‘“241 State Street, Hastings, Mich.”

The various letters and printed matter received by Dr. Morgan from the
advertiser represent that the latter can cure cancer without the knife or caus-
tics by sending the patient certain medicines to be taken by the patient at his
home. Many statements are made in regard to the eticacy of the treatment, a
few of which are quoted below:

‘““Greatest cancer * * * remedy of the age.” '

“Our remedies give safe, speedy, and certain relief to the most horrible
forms of cancer of the breast, face, stomach, and womb.”

‘“We have equally as good success with internal cancer as with external, and
rarely fail to cure.”

“ Our success in the treatment of cancers, * * * is without parallel.”

‘“We have cured 86 per cent of all cases who have taken our treatment.
This we believe is a better showing than any cancer specialist in this country
can make.”

“ Thousands suffering from cancer and its kindred diseases have been per-
fectly cured by this great discovery.”

‘“ Thousands of people die of cancer and mallgnant growth from year to year
who would surely have been cured by our treatment.”

“ Our blood remedles cure and cure to stay cured. This valuable treatment
is a positive safeguard and preventive against the development of cancer germ.”

The letters and printed matter from the advertiser also represent that it is

unnecessary for the afllicted to receive personal examination by Drs. Mixer, but
that the latter can, through the medium of this correspondence scheme, come
to a correct understanding of the patient’s case and furnish the necessary
treatment to cure. The advertiser furnishes the patient a so-called symptom
blank, consisting of printed list of questions, with instructions to the patient
to write answers thereto and mail the blank to the advertiser, when, it is repre-
sented, the latter can correctly diagnose the case and furnish the necessary
treatment. Dr. Morgan stated that he filled out the symptom blank so sent
him, giving the following information about the case:
- “YWoman; 45; married; height 5 feet 5 inches; weight 117 pounds. Passed
change of life three years ago. Two children, the youngest 16 years old. An
uncle died of cancer. Her complexion is sallow and her general health is bad.
Does not faint, but is very weak at times, and gets tired easily. Pulse some-
times rapid. Stooping sometimes causes dizziness. Appetite is not good, but
stomach and digestion are fairly good. Rarely troubled with nausea. She is
nervous and does not sleep well.

“ Has upon left breast a hollow sore or cavity 3 inches in diameter of eight
months standing. It is painful, the pain being sharp, stinging, and agonizing,
and there is much bad smelling discharge. The growth is not movable. The
nipple is drawn in. There are painful bunches under the arms, and the arm
pains when moved. The pain does not shoot through the back. There has been
no marked recent change. No operation has been performed. Patient does not
know for certain what her disease is called.

“ In answer to other questions it was stated patient’s mouth does not taste
badly in the morning and her bowels are regular. Lungs, heart, liver, and kid-
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neys O. K. No catarrh or piles. Can not trace her present trouble to any in-

jury. No lumps in neck or groin, nor sores on back, mouth, face, or privates.

No irritation elsewhere. Does not bloat, and there i8 no pain in back or head;

no night sweats nor chilly feeling. Is not especially drowsy or stupid. Neither

the perspiration nor the urine had a bad odor. The urine is not dark or cloudy.

No deposit. She does not have to urinate during the night. No blurring of the

eyesight, palpitation of the heart, or rushing of blood to the head. The skin is

not dry, harsh, or cold. She does not use liquor, tobacco, or opiates.”

Drs. Mixer's reply was that the patient was afflicted with cancer of the
“ epeidtl}’ellal type,” and that there was perceived “ no reason why you can not be
cur

The treatment sent Dr. Morgan consisted of seven medicines, respectively
labeled and directed to be taken as follows:

1. “Established 1862. Mixer's Cancer and Scrofula Syrup. (Cut of man’s
face, circled with: Dr. Mixer’s condition after cured by this remedy.) The
Greatest Blood Purifier in the World. Directions. Adult: Commence with §
teaspoonful and gradually increase to spoonful—if stomach will bear it—which
is sufficient in ordinary cases. With very strong constitution dose may be in-
creased to 13 to 2 spoonfuls. Great care should be used not to overcome the
stomach and produce nausea or dizziness. Persons with sensitive stomachs
must take small doses. Child: % to % teaspoonful. Shake bottle well, and
always take after meals, three times daily. This medicine will never spoil, and
will keep under any temperature.

“N. B. None genuine without this signature, Drs. Mixgr. Sole Manufac

- turers. Hastings, Michigan. Price, one dollar.”

2. “From Drs. Mixer, Mfg’s Mixers’ C. & S. S. Specialists on Cancer and
Blood Diseases. Hastings, Michigan. No. 1 Wash. To be used at every dress-
ing of the sore by spraying with an atomizer, or applying with small brush,
after parts have been thoroughly cleansed with warm water and Cleanoine
Soap Powder.

“Apply one thoroughly, then wipe off and apply the second time allowing it to
remain, and apply other dressings.

“ Keep in a cool dark place.”

3. “ From Drs. Mixegr, Mfr's Mixers' C. & 8. 8. Speclalists on Cancer and
Blood Diseases. Hastings, Michigan.

“No. 1 ALTERATIVE. Not to be taken until 4 bottles of C. & S. 8. are con-
sumed, then discontinue and take Alterative. Dose: One dessert spoonful
before meals, in water. If too strong for stomach take smaller doses. When
finished resume the C. & S. 8. Shake Thoroughly.”

4. “From Drs. Mixrr, Mfg’s Mixers’ C. & S. S. Specialists on Cancer and

Blood Diseases, Hustings, Michigan. CANCeER REepUCER. Shake thoroughly.
Apply around the edge of the sore and upon swollen parts at night, after
. using the No. 1 Wash and before applying the salve as a night dressing. The
absorbent cotton upon which the salve is spread can be slightly moistened
with it around the edges. It can be used as a mouth wash, or by wetting
absorbent cotton to apply to growths in the mouth or throat. (It isnot poison.
Not to be applied in the morning before using Cancer Paste).”

5. “From Drs. Mixegr, Mfr's Mixers’ C. & S. 8. Specialists on Cancer and
Blood Diseases, Hastings, Michigan. CANCER PAsTE. Spread on absorbent cot-
ton or old linen, and apply as a dressing for the sore and swollen parts during
the day, after using the No. 1 Wasli. Reduce 3 with vaseline if it produces
any firritation.”

6. **From Drs. Mixgr, Mfr's Mixers’ C. & S. S. Speclalists on Cancer and
Blood Diseases, Hastings, Michigan. CaNcer SALVE. Spread on absorbent cot-
ton or old linen; and apply as a dressing for the sore and swollen parts at
night, after using the No. 1 Wash and Cancer Reducer. (Opium one scruple
per ounce) Keep in a cool place.”

7. “ From Drs. Mixegr, Mfr's Mixers’ C. & S. S. Specialists on Cancer and
Blood Diseases, Flastings, Michigan. CLEANOINE SoAr Powbprr. To be used at
every dressing of the sore by dusting over and washing off with soft cloth or
brush. If more convenient it may be put in warm soft water and used to
cleanse sore with., It is also most valuable to use in warm water as an injec-
tion or douche.”

Dr. Kimberly testificd that he had made chemical annlvsis of these prepara-
tions and had found them to be composed, respectively, as follows:

1. Mixer's cancer and scrofula sirup.—A sirup containing potassium iodide
and a small amount of vegetable ingredient similar to sarsaparilla, flavored
with methyl salicylate, and containing about 6 per cent alcohol.
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2. No. 1 wash.—An ordinary solution of hydrogen peroxide.

3. No. 1 alterative.—A hydroalcoholic solution containing a large amount of
glycerin and a small amount of vegetable matter similar to gentian.

4. Cancer reduccr.—A strong alcoholic solution of camphoraceous oils com-
bined with considerable glycerin.

5. Cancer paste.—An ointment paste made up of vaseline, incorporating a
large amount of ground flaxseed, and including therewith a camphoraceous
substance and alkaloidal bearing matter which resembled hyoscyamus.

6. Cancer salve.—A salve composed of vaseline and lanolin, incorporating
powdered opium and tannin.

7. Cleanoine svap powder.—An antiseptic soap powder containing borax and

thymol.
" Dr. Thomas A. Claytor, of No. 1315 New Hampshire Avenue, this city, a
regularly licensed and practicing pbysician of about 20 years' experience, was
presented by request and testified that it was impossible by the absent mail
method pursued in this case and the use of symptom blanks, where the patient
writes answers to a list of questions and sends it to the physician, and without
any personal examination of the patient by the physician, and without any
knowledge of a microscopical examination of the affected part, for a physician
to make a reliable diagnosis of cancer. He also testified that, in his opinion, a
treatment composed of the remmedies disclosed by Dr. Kimberly’'s analysis could
not be relied upon to affect a cure of cancer in such a case as Dr. Morgan sub-
mitted to this advertiser, assuming that the trouble in that instance was cancer.
He also testified that such a treatment, in his opinion, could not be relied upon
to cure any case of cancer irrespective of variety, duration, and location in the
body, nor could it be relied upon to produce the results indicated in the adver-
tsed claims of Drs. Mixer. as set out above.

Dr. J. Ford Thompson, an eminent physician and surgeon of this city, of
long experience in practice, was also present by request. and testified to the
same effect as Dr. Claytor.

Further evidence of the spuriousness of this business is found in the false
pretense that it is conducted by physicians. Inspection of the advertisements,
correspondence, and printed matter reveals assiduous effort to impress patients
with this idea. Not only the names used for the business does this, but in
much of the advertising matter Charles W. Mixer is in terms referred to as
“Doctor.” As is admitted, the business is owned and conducted by Charles
W. Mixer. He is neither a graduate of nor licensed to practice medicine. The
idea given by the advertising matter is that the doctors are Charles W. Mixer
and his father, L. N. Mixer, who, it is claimed. originated the treatment. The
father, however, has been dead for many years, and Charles W. Mixer is, as
has been said, not a physician.

Further evidence of the spuriousness of the alleged cure is this: Part of the
advertising matter ured to impress prospective patients with the claimed genu-
Ineness of the treatment is an article which, it is pretended, was published by
the American Journal of Health. This article appears on page 20 of a pam-
phlet entitled “A Truthful Treatise on Cancer and Malignant Tumors.” and is
headed :

“The following is reprinted from one of the-leading journals of the country :

“ PALLIATIVES AND CURATIVES IN THE TREATMENT OF CANCER AND SCROFULA.
“By G. H. Beown, M. D.”

This so-called article is too lengtby to be inserted here, but its effect is that
investigation has proven that the Drs. Mixer's treatment is a rellable, perma-
ment, and positive cure for cancer. The manifest object is to have it seem
that this is an impartial and reliable article by a reputable medical journal.
The facts are that this thing was sold to Mr. Mixer, as he stated at the hearing,
for $5 or $10. He could not recall the exact amount, and said that the ar-
rangement was that he was to pay the money for a certain number of copies of
the issuc containing this writeup. He failed to state whether, in fact, he ever
received those copies.

The evidence offered by the defendant was directed to the point of showing
that cases of cancer had been cured by these medicines. 'To show this they pro-
duced statements, some of which were sworn and some not, from various persons
to the effect, in general, that those persons had had troubles which they believed
were cancers; that they had used the Drs. Mixer treatment; and that they
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became relieved of their troubles. In some instances it was also stated that
local physicians had expressed a belief that the trouble might be cancer.

These testimonials are substantially the only evidence submitted by the
defendant.

However, there was no satisfactory evidence adduced that the persons mak-
ing these statments had cancer, and consequently the mere fact that this
advertiser had been able to produce these testimonials of apparent cures of
cancer is of little significance on the question of whether this treatment is a
cure for cancer. This is especially so in the light of the facts proven by the
analysis. The opinion of the patient himself on this subject is, of course, of
no consequence. It is a well-recognized fact that cancer is one of the most
difficult diseases to diagnose with certainty, and that a microscopical exam-
Ination is essential to the making of a positive diagnosis. And there has been
positively no proof of this kind submitted in this case. Of course the statement
of Mr. Mixer as to the character of the trouble is of no particular value, as it
is admitted that he is not a physician, and even any statement on such sub-
Ject—and there has been none submitted to me—by such professional assistants
as he might hire would be substantially worthless in the light of the evidence
of the impracticability of a physician’s making a reliable diagnosis of cancer
by the absent mail method in vogue in this case. In fact, it is to be expected
that out of the multitude of cases that this advertiser treats each year there
should be a certain number of instances in which persons do not have cancer
at all but are afflicted with some nonmalignant sores which are amenable to
treatment and which in some Instances do yield to treatment. The recovery of
such cases is what furnishes this advertiser with the pretext of claiming that
he has actually cured cancer. Furthermore, it may be said, speaking generally,
that in all my experiences in this office, never has a medical concern, no matter
how fraudulent its metheds or worthless its treatment, been unable to pro-
duce, as occasion might seem to require, an almost unlimited number of these
testimonial letters.

After careful consideration of all the circumstances of this case I am con-
vinced that the business of this person in the treating of patients at their
homes for cancer under the representations made, is a scheme to obtain money
through the mails by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations,
and promises. I am satisfied that said business is not conducted in good faith,
but merely as a scheme to fraudulently extort money without intending to
return therefor the services promised, and without any belief that patients
with cancer can be cured as represented. The analysis of the medicines sent to
the Department of Agriculture proves conclusively, I think, the spuriousness of
the practice of this advertiser.

I find that this is a scheme for obtaining money through the mails by means
of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and I there-
fore recommend that a fraud order be issued against Drs. Mixer.

Assistant Attorney General.

Mr. Goopwin. Now this is a copy of the order which was issued.

The CHairMAN. Tt is not necessary to read the fraud order.

Mr. GoopwiN. This is a copy of the order attached, with a copy of
the letter transmitting the order to the postmaster.

The CHarMaN. We would be glad to have the order printed in
the record, but I do not believe that it is necessary to read any of
that other matter.

Mr. AusTiN. You have there the orders issued in this case?

Mr. Goobwin. Yes, sir.

The Cramrman. They may be inserted in the record at this point.

(The matter referred to is as follows:)

Order No. 2871.]
PostT OFFICE DEPARTMENT
Washington, January 24, 1916,
It having been made to appear to the Postmaster General, upon evidence satis-
factory to him, that Drs. Mixer. at Hastings, Mich., are engaged in con-

ducting a scheme or device for obtaining money through the mails by means
of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises in violation
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of the act of Congress entitled “An act to amend certain sections of the

Revised Statutes relating to lotteries, and for other purposes,” approved

September 19, 1890,

Now, therefore, by authority vested in him by said act and by the act
of Congress entitled “An act for the suppression of lottery traffic through in-
ternational and interstate commerce and the postal service, subject to the ju-
risdiction and laws of the United States,” approved March 2, 1895, the Post-
master General hereby forbids you to pay any postal money order drawn to
the order of said party; and you are hereby directed to inform the remitter
of any such postal money order that payment thereof has been forbidden and
that the amount thereof will be returned upon the presentation of the original
order or a duplicate thereof applied for and obtained under the regulations of
the department. ’

And you are hereby instructed to return all letters, whether registered or
not, and other mail matter which shall arrive at your office directed to the said
party to the postmasters at the offices at which they were originally mailed, to
be delivered to the senders thereof, with the word “ Fraudulent” plainly writ-
ten or stamped upon the outside of such letters or matter: Provided, however,
that where there is nothing to indicate who are the senders of letters not reg-
istered, or other matter, you are directed in that case to send such letters and
matter to the Division of Dead Letters with the word ‘ Fraudulent” plainly
. written or stamped thereon, to be disposed of as other dead matter under the
laws and regulations applicable thereto.

' F. H. HITCHCOCK,

Postmuster General.
The PosTMASTER, Hastings, Mich.

PosT OFFICE DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL,
Washington, January 24, 1910.
PosTMASTER, Hastings, Mich.

Sie: I inclose herewith a copy of order No. 2871, dated January 24, 1910,
forbidding the delivery of mail matter and the payment of money orders to Drs.
Mixer, Hastings, Mich., the original of which, signed by the Postmaster General,
has been retained on the files of this department. ’

In the enforcement of this order please observe the following general regula-
tions, published in the United States Postal Guide for January, 1903 (p. 955,
sec. 30), viz:

‘“ Postmasters are notified that fraud orders issued under the provisions of
the acts of September 19, 1890 (26 Stat. L., 465), and March 2, 1895 (28 Stat.
L., 963), do not cover mail matter under the frank of a Senator or Representa-
tive or other officer entitled to the franking privilege; nor that which is cov-
ered by an official envelope. Nor do these orders apply to matter not under
seal, such as newspapers, circulars, etc., unless specifically stated in the order
or by subsequent letter of instructions.”

Very respectfully,

Assistant Attorney Gen.cral.

Mr. Goopwix. Now, we had also at that hearing a statement
which I think T can find here, that was obtained by the Agrlculturai
Department. The Agricultural Department wrote to a large num-
ber of physicians, and T have here a copy of one of the several letters.
The same identical letter was sent to each one of these physicians.

This letter reads as follows:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
BUREAU OF CHEMISTRY,
Washington, D. C., Nocember 9, 1908.
CHARLES SPENCER WILLIAMSON, M. D,
103 State Strect, Chicago, I11.

DEAR Si1R: We are at present investigating so-called cancer cures which are
widely advertised and sold throughout the United Stutes, and in order to ob-
tain information in regard to such cases from medical men direct, for the use
of this department, I would nsk that you aunswer the guestions on inclosed
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sheets as fully. and directly as possible and return same in inclosed franked
envelope. Comments and suggestions are invited.
Respectfully, H. W. WiLEY, Chief.

. Inclosure: Blank for reply. Franked envelope.

The Crarman. The letter you have read was signed by H. W.
Wiley. He is chief of what?:

Mr. Gooowin. He is the Chief of the Bureau of Chemistry.

Now, here is a list of the questions inclosed, which I will read.
These questions cover a number of cases, and some of them do not
apply to this case:

1. In the present state of our knowledge can radium and other substances
which possess radloactivity be properly regarded .as cures for cancer in the
sense of eradicating the disease completely and permanently?

2. In the present state of our knowledge can the Roentgen or X-rays, or other
rays of this type, be properly regarded as a cure for cancer in the sense of
gni'aidicatlng the disease completely and permanently? If so, under what con-

tions?

3. In the present state of our knowledge can electricity in the form of current
or spark be properly regarded as a cure for cancer in the sense of eradicating
the disease completely and permanently? If so, under what conditions?

4. In the present state of our knowledge can the use internally, or externally,
or both, of water which has been reduced radioactive, elther with or without the
addition of fluorescent agents, such as esculin, acid solutions of quinine sulphate,
etc., be properly regarded as a cure for cancer in the sense of eradicating the dis- -
ease completely and permanently? If so, under what conditions?

5. In your opinion, in the present state of our knowledge is there any sub-
stance or mixtures of substances which by its use can be relied upon with any
degree of certainty to effcct a complete and permanent cure of cancer? If so,
please name the substance and state the conditions under which it may act as
a cure for cancer in the sense above defined.

Mr. GoopwiN. Now, that is the ony question that applies to this
ﬁase——that is, the last one I have read. Now, we have the answers

ere.

The Cuairman. Let us have the answers that apply to this case.

Mr. Goopwin. These answers are duplicated.

Mr. Tow~er. Would it not be a good idea to let the reporter take
these complete answers and insert them in the record just asthey are?
I am satisfied that there may be some superfluous matter, but I would
like to have it all go in. :

The Cizairman. It might go in the record, but I suggest that he
read only those inquiries and answers that are applicable to this
case. I understand that only one of the queries submitted to the
doctors throughout the country apply to this particular case?

Mr. Goopwin. That is all; it is the last question here.

The CrairMan. Then, all we care for are the answers to the last
query. :

Mr. Stesp. And that would apply to any other remedy ?

Mr. Goopwix. Yes, sir; it would apply to any remedy whatever.
The question reads as follows:

In your opinion, in the present state of our knowledge, Is there any substance
or mixture of substances which by its use can be relied upon with any degree
of certainty to effect a complete and permanent cure of cancer?

If so, please name the substance and state the conditions under which it may
act as a cure for cancer in the sense above defined. :

The letters from these physicians were at the hearing and open
to the examination of Dr. Mixer and his counsel.



2022 EXPENDITURES IN THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT.

The answers of the physicians are as follows:

Question submitted to medical men with letter of the Department of Agri-
culture, dated November 9, 1908: *‘ In your opinion, in the present state of our
knowledge, is there any substance or mixture of substances which by its use
can be relied upon with any degree of certainty to effect a complete and per-
manent cure of cancer? If so, please name the substance and state the condi-
tions under which it may act as a cure for cancer in the sense above defined.”

Robert Abbe, surgeon, New York City (lecturer on surgery College Physi-
cians and Surgeons, Columbia University; surgeon to New York Cancer Hos-
pital, Roosevelt, Woman’s Rabies’, St. Luke's, and other hospitals in New
York City) : “ There is no known cancer cure worth anything but the knife in
general cancer.”

Truman Abbe, practioner, Washington, D. C.: “ Yes; caustics. Celey’s Fluid
in sarcoma.” :

J. M. Anders, physician, ‘Philadelphia, Pa. (professor medicine and clinical
medicine, Medico-Chirurgical College, Philadelphia, physician to Medico-Chirur-
gical Hospital, Jewish Hospital; Author) : “I know of nothing.”

Carl Beck, surgeon, New York City (professor surgery New York Post Grad-
uate Medical School, surgeon St. Mark’s Hospital and German Poliklinik;
Author) : “ No.”

J. Wesley Bovee, physician and surgeon, Washington, D. C. (professor gy-
necology, medical department George Washington University ; Gynsecologist Co-
lumbia, Providence, and George Washington University Hospitals; consulting
physician St. Ann’s Infant Asylum: “Absolutely none known to me.” .

W. O. Bridges, physician, Omaha, Nebr.:* No; except as stated.” [Excep-
tions referred to relate to replies to questions with regard to radium and
Roentgen or other rays.]

P. K. Brown, physiclan, San Francisco, Cal. (instructor in clinical pathology
and experimental medicine University of California; physician to Mount Zion
Hospital ; Californla Eye and Ear Hospital, and French Hospital) : “1 do not
believe anything affects cancerous tissue except arsenic paste. The principle
back of all these things is the diminished resistance of cancerous tissue to
destructive agents, whether from chemical substances, X ray, or heat.”

R. C. Cabot. physician, Boston, Mass. (physician, Massachusetts General I{os-
pital, Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirlmary, and New England Hospital;
author) : “ There is none.”

Solomon Solis Cohen, physician, Philadelphia, Pa. (professor clinical medi-
cine Jefferson Medical College, physician Philadelphin General Hospital, Jef-
ferson, Rush, and Jewish Hospitals; author) ; ‘ None.”

Nathan S. Davis, jr., physician, Chicago, 1ll. (professor of medicine Chicago
Medical College ; physician Mercy and Wesley Hospitals; author) : * No. There
gre none.”

John B. Deaver, surgeon, Philadelphia, Pa. (professor of surgery, medical
department, University of Pennsylvania: author): *“ No.” .

F. H. Gerrish, physician and surgeon, Portland, Me. (professor of surgery
Bowdoin College; surgeon Maine General Hospital) : “ No.”

E. L. Hunt, practitioner, New York City: ‘“ No.”

Joseph Taber Johnson, physician and surgeon, Washington, D. C. (professor
of gynecology and abdominal surgery Georgetown University; consulting sur-
geon to six bospitals) - “ No.” .

Howard A. Kelly, physician and surgeon, Baltimore, Md. (professor of gyne-
cology Johns IHopkins University Hospital; surgeon Johns IIopkins Hospital ;
author) : *“ No.” )

Charles H. and Williain J. Mayo, surgeons, Rochester, Minn. (Willlam J.
Mayo, surgeon §t. Mary's Hospital) : “ In the present state of our knowledge
there it no substance or mixture of substances that can be relied upon to effect
a complete and permanent cure of cancer; and most of them are harmful in
that they cause delay, thus preventing any possibility of cure of the individ-
uval. No.”

Robert T. Morris, physician and surgeon, New York City (professor of
surgery, New York Post-Graduate Medical College: author): “ In my opinlon
no substance or mixture of substances can be relied upon for beneficial influ-
ence in cases of cancer unless ‘ luminiferous ether’ would come under the head
of ‘substance. and even the X rays or high-frequency current can not be
relied upon. Some gland extracts help.”

John B. Murphy, surgeon. Chicago. 111. (professor of surgery. Unliversity of
Chieago; inventor of the ** Murphy button ™) : *“ No; none.”
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J. H. Musser, physician, Philadelphia, Pa. (professor of clinical medicine,
University of Pennsylvania; physician to Philadelphia University, Presbyterian,
and other hospitals; author): “I know of no substance or mixture of sub-
stances that can effect a permanent and complete cure of cancer. I am told
that Coley’s fluid, 8o called, may bave an influence in the arrest of sarcoma.”

0. T. Osborne, physician. New Haven, Conn. (professor of materin medica
and therapeutics, Yale Medical School) : “ No.”

Robert Reyburn, late physician and surgeon, Washington, D. C. (late
professor of hygiene and preventive medicine. medical department, Howard
University) : “ No. The methods of treatment spoken of here [relating to
questions submitted to Dr. Reyburn regarding radium, X rays and other rays,
electricity, etc.] can only relieve the local symptoms. After the cancerous
growth has been removed by the knife or local treatment, the patient should
be treated medically for the purpose of removing the morbid products which
are the cause of the cancerous tumor.” Refers to an article by himself, en-
titled *‘The causes of cancer,” published in Washington Medical Annals. vol-
ume 1, No. 4, 1902. |

Sterling Ruffin, physician, Washington, D. C. (professor of medicine, George-
Washington University; physician to various hospitals in Washington) : “ Not
to my personal knowledge. Favorable reports have heen made on the use of
the ‘Alexander fluid,’ the composition of which is to me unknown. If spindle-
celled sarcoma is intended to be included in the term °‘cancer,’ there is reason
to believe that some cases are favorably influenced, or even cured, by injec-
tions of Coley’'s mixed toxines of the erysipelas organism and the bacillus
prodigiosus.”

Thomas E. Satterthwaite, physician, New York City (professor of medi-
cine, Post Graduate Medical School, consulting physiclan to Post Graduate,
Babies, Orthopmdic, and Manhattan State Hospitals; author) : “I know of no
substance or mixture of substances that can be used successfully to cure cancer
in any of its forms. Note.—There is, however, some probability that cancer
will in very rare instances disappear of itself. Such cases have been reported.
I have known an instance of cancer of the breast existing 40 years, but these are
the exceptions that do not vitiate the general law that cancer is incurable.”

John V. Shoemaker, physician, Philadelphia, Pa. (professor materia medica
and therapeutics Medico-Chirurgical Medical College, Philadelphia; author) :
“No; none.”

Samuel Cecil Stanton, practitioner, Chicago, I1l.: “ No.”

Charles G. Stockton, physician, Buffalo, N. Y. (professor of medicine, medi-
cal department University of Buffalo; physician to Buffalo General Hospital,
and New York State Hospital for Crippled and Deformed Children) : * No.”

Frank P. Vale, physician, Washington, D. C. (practitioner and author): “I
know of none.”

George Tully Vaughan, surgeon, Washington, D. C. (professor of surgery
Georgetown University; surgeon to Georgetown University, Emergency, and
St. Elizabeth Hospitals; author) : “ No.”

" James E. Walker, physician, Hornell, N. Y.: ‘“So far as I know thorough
surgery Is the only cure. Pastes can sometimes be used to advantage in epl-
theliomas.”

Robert F. Weir, surgeon, New York City (professor of surgery College of
Physicians and Surgeons, Columbia University, New York, consulting surgeon to
various hospitals in New York City) : “ There i8, in my judgment, no reliability
to be given to any yet known substance or mixture of substances that will, with
any certainty, effect a cure of cancer when administered, with one possible ex-
ception, in which, however, the result is very doubtful and the tests yet too
small. I refer to the internal use of thyroid products as now being tried by
Drs. Ewing and Beebe, of the Cornell Medical School. 'They have reported a
few cases in which benefit has apparently arisen, and the method is now under
private test in New York City. I allude to this mainly because the matter is
being developed in a cold scientific way, and also because three cases are now
under my immediate supervision. It would not be fair to the suggestors of
this method to do more than allude to their work, but I confess it is the only
think so far that has raised any hope in my mind on this point. Six months
hence may prove its failure though three years would at least be required to
show its success.” '

Reynold Webb Wilcox, physiclan, New York City (professor of medicine
New York Post Graduate Medical School; physician to Nassau and St. Marks
Hospitals; author) : “At the present time knowledge in regard to what cancer
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is i8 too Indefinite to admit of accurate knowledge of what means or method
will cure. Cancer is curable by absolute eradication by various means, but the
cancerous disease is not.”

Charles Spencer Williamson, practitioner, Chicago, Ill. (professor of clinical
‘t‘ngll,c’ine and assoclate professor, Medical College Physicians and Surgeons) :

0.

James C. Wilson, physician, Philadelphia, Pa. (professor of medicine Jeffer-
son Medical College, Philadelphia ; physician to Pennsylvania, Jefferson Medlcal
College, German, Lying In, and Charity, Rust, Jewish, and other hospitals in
Philadelphia; author) : “Arsenical pastes as escharatics in cutaneous cancer.
The treatment is painful, prolonged, and of very uncertain results.”

Mr. Gooowin. These answers that I give here are summaries of
the replies to the letters, and they are in t%:e possession of the Depart-
ment of Agriculture. It must not be understood that the answers to
the inquiries here are given in exactly the same language. We have
the letters here, and that is a summary of their remarks.

Mr. McCovy. I do not think we can have any intelligent under-
standing of it until we can read those letters. -

Mr. Stemp. Is that an abstract of the contents of the letters
received ?

Mr. Gooowin. Yes, sir; I have read a copy of the letter that was
sent out, to which answers were received.

The Cuairman. Judge Goodwin, I would like to ask you whether
or not any complaints were filed with the Post Office DelBtrtment by
persons who had answered the advertisements of the Drs. Mixer,
claiming that they have been defrauded ?

Mr. Gooowin. As I told you before, I can not tell you whether
there was or not.

The CuairMaN. What inspired this investigation which lead to
the issuance of the fraud order? :

Mr. Goopwin. The first information I had of the matter was when
the citation came on to my desk. The citation that I read to you as
a part’ of this opinion, or quoted in this opinion, that citation was
prepared in my office by my assistant and was sent in to me with the
rest of my mail when it came to me to sign. I do not pretend to
state this entirely from memory, but it is the practice, and it was the
case in this case. I know it was the case in this case, and that was
the first knowledge I had of the case. As I stated, this citation was
sent in to me. read the citation, or, rather, the memorandum of
charges, and then signed the citation, which required Dr. Mixer to
appear on the day stated therein and show cause why a fraud order
should not be issued.

The Cuamman. That citation would not be issued without com-
plaint on the part of some one, would it

Mr. GoopwiN. It is possible. I said there was a complaint by Dr. -
Morgan. 1 know that Dr. Morgan made a complaint.

The CHAIRMAN. This is Dr. Morgan here?

Mr. GooowiN. Yes, sir. I have here a number of letters in this
case. I have not read them, and do not know what they are, but I
presume some of them are perhaps protesting against the action of
the department in issuing this order.

M?r. SLEMP. Are they in response to any circular letter sent out by
you

Mr. Gooowin. No, sir.

The CHarMAN. Did you send a post-office inspector to make an
investigation of Dr, Mixer?



EXPENDITURES IN THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. 2025.

Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir; I think not.

The CuarMaN. And all that you know about this case is that you
found this citation on your desk, and after this came to your notice,
it was referred to the chemical experts in the Agricultural De-
partment ?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; I found the citation on my desk and the
memorandum of charges, with the citation prepared for my signa-
ture, and with a letter to the postmaster at %Iastings, Mich., direct-
ing him to deliver the citation with a copy of the charges to Dr.
Mixer. I signed the citation and letter to the postmaster, and it
was sent to the postmaster in the usual course ang delivered by him
to Dr. Mixer. %‘he investigation of the case which led up to the
making of this memorandum of charges was made by my assistant.

Mr. Austin. I would like to ask you whether the department has
to wait for complaints when they are satisfied that a fraud is being
perpetrated

r. Gooowin. No, sir; we do not wait for that.

Mr. McCoy. Do ﬁou look through the newspapers to find out what
is gldiné on along this line?

r. Gooowin. Of course, we do not do that either, although there
have been occasions when we have cut out advertisements from the
newspapers which we believed to be frauds, and have sent them to
the cll)lief inspector and asked for an investigation. Of course, we
do not have a corps of men who make it their business to watch the
newspapers to see these advertisements, but we have on occasions
done that. As I understand it, these cancer cases—and there were a
number of them probably a dozen of them, I should judge—and
these cases, as I understand it, were prepared by the Department of
Agriculture and brou%ht to the attention of my assistant, whose
duty it is to prepare these cases for presentation to me. My assist-
ant, in conjunction with these gentlemen who represent the Depart-
ment of Agriculture, prepared the cases for presentation to me. I
knew nothing about tEe case until I received this memorandum of
charges, and I knew nothing more about the case until the time of
the hearing, except, of course, what I gathered from the memoran-
dum of charges.

The CuamrMaN. In your opinion, are the advertisements of this
company any more extravagant than those of the ordinary proprie-
tary medicine advertisements? , '

Mr. GoopwiN. Well, possibly not more so than some of them.

-The Cuamrman. Possibly not more so than many of them?

Mr. GoopwiN. That may be true.

Mr. Avstin. Did it not carry on its face an impossibility ?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. How do you know that?

Mr. Gooowin. I know that by ordinary human knowledge.

Mr. McCoy. What human knowledge has disclosed the fact that
cancer is not curable?

Mr. GoopwiN. These medicines which he sent out could not b}Z
any possibility, according to the testimony of the physicians, whic
I Kad to rely upon—as I say, could not by any possibility—cure
cancer.

Mr. McCovy. Those physicians who answered the letters did not
have this medicine, di(f) they ?
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Mr. Goopwin. The physicians who appeared before me personally
did have the medicine or an analysis of it.

Mr. McCoy. What was their experience as specialists on cancer?

Mr. Goopwin. Dr. J. Ford Thompson has had very many years’
experience. He has had very many years’ experience as a cancer
specialist and surgeon. He is concege(i' to be one of the very best in
the country. Dr. %Iorgan has the papers here and will produce them.

. Mr. Towner. Is it not true that every one of these so-called reme-
dies have been in use for a long time, and that, if submitted to chem-
ists, it could be determined by them or by anyone who had any
knowledge whatever of the subject, that all of these were remedies
that had been used for all kinds of superficial sores, from sore toes
up, and that if they were in fact a cure for cancer there would be no
such thing as cancer in existence ?

Mr. Goopwiw. I think that is true.

Mr. McCor. Then you would exclude any remedy which is adver-
tised to cure anything?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; not necessarily. .

Mr. Towner. But this man pretended that it was a discovery—a
new discovery ?

Mr. GoopwiIN. Yes, sir.

Mr. TowNer. And a secret formula?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. Auvstin. Did he say whether an Indian told his father about
it or not ?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; he did not tell that story. We have had
that story several times, but he did not offer that.

Mr. ReorieLo. How much notice of the hearing did he have?

Mr. Goopwin. Two months.

Mr. Austin. The hearing was continued, as the record shows.

Mr. Goobwin. His notice was dated November 4, and the hearing
was originally set down for December 10, but was afterwards post-
poned to January 4.

Mr. Reprierp. Did he have ample time?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mvr. Austin. Did he have plenty of time?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir; all the time he wanted.

_ Mr. Reoriewp. Was any complaint made by the defendant in the
case that he had not been given full time, or sufficient time, or notice
sufficient, or sufficient opportunity in any way, to be fully heard?

Mr. Goopwin. Not the slightest.

Mr. Reprierp. Is there anything of that kind in the record?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

Mr. Austin. If he could make good on that proposition now, the
order would be revoked, would it not?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir; certainly.

I have here, along the line of these questions, a letter from Mr.
Colgrave, who was his attorney.

Mr. SLEMP. Suppose you read the entire letter ?

1\;11'. AvustiN. This committee is fond of having everything read
in full.

Mr. Reorierp. Especially the gentleman from Tennessee.
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Mr. Goopwin. The letter reads as follows:
[Colgrave & Potter, attorneys at law, Philip T. Colgrave, Willlam W. Potter.]

[Stamped on face: Office of Assistant Attorney General. Recelved January
14, 1910. Post Office Department.]

Hon. R. P. GoopwIN,
Assistant Attorney General, Washington, D. C.

My DEAR JupGe: I have been at a loss to know just exactly what I ought to
do further, if anything, in the matter now pending relating to the Drs. Mixer
matter. I am so thoroughly impressed with the fairness and frankness with
which you met me and my cause, and I am impelled to do so far as it is
possible my whole duty, as I see it, first, however, seeking your pleasure.
The case is before you only in part, and I am so confident that no court under
our system of jurisprudence would render a decree taking away from a citi-
zen everything he possesses on earth, that I shall, with your permission, pre-
gent for your consideration some matte? I deem of the greatest importance.

I had a long conference with Judge Smith yesterday, who feels and thinks
in this matter just as I do.

It was the conclusion that I should inclose you the withln correspondence
and telegrams, by all means, and ask for the privilege of submitting further
proof along such lines as you might indicate. You will remember that during
the argument Mr. Keyser, representing the Government, referred to the pay-
ment of $250 to Mr. Weinschenk, of New York. I am very frank in my state-
ment to you that Mr. Keyser, in my judgment, was extremely fair, and my
estimate of him advanced with the progress of the investigation.

I am inclosing you the correspondence in full, and very fortunate for us I
have been able to procure from the Western Union Telegraph Co. the telegrams
which were sent and which, together with the correspondence, completes a
perfect chain of proof in this matter. First, I wish to call your attention to
the fact that this correspondence shows beyond any question the desire on the
part of Mr. Mixer to comply with the law of your department.

I here challenge your attention, and especially do I wish Mr. Keyser to note
the fact that the objectionable literature which he held in his hands (and
which I assured him was not being used and that the plates were fully
destroyed), is here taken up. You will notice in Mr. Weinschenk’s letter of
September 21, 1906, which is the last letter in package herewith inclosed, he
uses this language which I have marked with pencil brackets: “ I have care-
fully read and considered the printed matter which you submit for my opinion.
To be frank with you, as I must be, there is an abundance of matter, especially
in the booklet, that is unquestionably repugnant to the postal laws and regula-
tions, and which if brought to the attention of the authorities would certainly
cause trouble. To take these matters up by correspondence would cover a
long period of time, and I strongly urge you to have a personal talk with me
about it at once. The best way would be for you to come right on to New York
and meet me here some day next week.”

I call your attention to the fact that immediately on the receipt of this
letter Mr. Mixer wired Mr. Weinschenk as follows:

“Can be there Tuesday if agreeable. Wire answer. Tell Watkins.”

Copy of this message is also attached and on the back is the signature of
Mr. Watkins, who is now and was the agent of the Michigan Central. Mr.
Watkins has attached, you will notice, the stamp of the Michigan Central Ralil-
road Co. on the back to authenticate this message.

Mr. Weinschenk immediately wired his answer, which is also certiﬁed to
by Mr. Watkins.

Mr. Mixer immediately proceeded to New York and the matter was taken up
to the end that Mr. Mixer might be set right.

I submit that the proof herewith inclosed stands as a monument to the
integrity of my client. The booklet had been published and certain copies sent
to Mr. Mixer. It was the most unfortunate of all things for my client that
the lady in charge should have by mistake sent one of the obsolete booklets
as late as 1909 to the person in Washington seeking evidence for this investi-
gation. I can furnish you absolute proof that this literature has not been used
since Mr. Mixer’s return from New York; that the plates were destroyed, and
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only the coples that had been sent with this offensive literature, before the
visit to New York, were ever received by Mr. Mixer.

Since my return home I have taken this matter up with Miss Trask, who is
in charge of there matters, and the result of my investigation satisfied me beyond
(uestion that this was simply an oversight, and that a few copies which werc
still in the office and which had not been destroyed by error were inclosed in
this most unfortunate incident.

I am confident that this Inclosed proof will be welcomed by you, as it will,
I am sure, put at rest the unfortunate statement in Mr. Mixer's letter to the
Minnesota doctor when he stated in his letter that he had paid $250 to be set
right with the Post Office Department and will explain fully a branch of the
case I know must have annoyed both yourself and Mr. Keyser.

In concluding, I earnestly urge that you advise me if you require further
proof and along what lines, and I promise you it will be furnished and to your
entire satisfaction as well as I trust to the satisfaction of Mr. Keyser, whose
only care and concern I am sure is that complete justice shall be done. Within
a radius of 75 miles from this city I can take any expert the Government may
desire to send from Washington to dozeps of cases where the Mixer remedies
have positively cured the most malignant cancers. These people are alive.
The doctors who resided in their various villages and cities are alive. In
some instances these cancers were preserved in alcohol. To be honest, Judge,
would it not be only fair before ruining a citizen to send a man in whom you
have utter confidence and let us prove by absolute, positive, undeniable evidence
that somehow and in some way these remedies do exactly what is clalmed.
‘You and I know only too well that the schools of medicine disagree more
widely than any of the professions upon cures for the various diseases the
human family is inflicted with. As a court you would hesitate, I am sure, to
condemn or approve the opinion of any one school. The two or three physicians
who were sworn in this case were ahsolutely true to their convictions. On
the other hand, you have in our exhibits the affidavits of various doctors, and
the testimony we have presented so completely outweighs the evidence of the
witnesses who were brought before you on the 4th instant that there remains
practically nothing by way of argument, and until I learn your pleasure I will
not force upon you anything that might be either offensive or objectionable to
the cause in which I am engaged.

1 would highly appreciate it if you would suggest any line of proof upon
which you are seeking further light.

Believe me to be, sincerely, yours, P’. T. COLGRAVE.

Mr. AusTiN. Who is the Judge Smith referred to in that letter?

Mr. Goopwin. I do not remember, but I think perhaps he is a
local judge there. ,

Mr. AusTiN. He used to be this man’s attorney before he was put
on the bench?

Mr. Goopwin. I guess that is right.

Now the main object of that letter I have just read was to show,
as I take it, that the doctor had not intended—at least, in his state-
ment to the doctor in Michigan—to infer that there was any corrup-
tion in the manner in which he was protecting himself in the matter
before the Post Office Department.

Mr. SLemp. And also expressing satisfaction with your hearing?

Mr. Goobwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. ALexaNDER. You had not decided it at that time, had you?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir; but he did not know it. The memoran-
dum had been sent to the Postmaster General before this letter was
written. The memorandum is dated one day before the date of this
letter and three days before the letter was received.

Mr. McCoy. He refers to some affidavits from physicians?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. What weight, if you can say now, was given to those
affidavits?

Mr. Suemp. Let me ask you—possibly this case is briefed ?
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Mr. GoopwinN. We have the answers in writing.*

Mr. ALexaNper. Have you his answer ?

Mr. Goopwin. I think 1t is here.

Mr. ALexanper. It ought to go into the record.

Mr. Reoriep. What inquiry was addressed to the point as to
whether this man, while possibly selling something which was in-
efficient or harmless, or, perhaps, useless, might have been sincere
in his conviction that it was useful ?

Mr. Avstin. He published these lies and believed them, I think.

Mr. ALexanper. I think that is an unkind statement to make.

Mr. AvsTiN. I think he believed them.

Mr. GoopwiN. I do not think it is possible -that he could -have
believed what he said.

Mr. Reoriewp. The question in my mind is this, not whether the
remedy used was necessarily the proper one in the case. Let it be
conceded that the things were useYess for the purpose indicated, yet
it remains true that the man may conceivably have been sincere in
his belief. I think I have known people who have been sincere in
the belief both that they did cure and would cure in such cases.

Mr. Stemp. Do you not think that these questions should be di-
rected rather to the chemical experts of the Department of Agri-
culture?

Mr. Reoriewp. I am dealing with the remedy itself.

Mr. ALexaNpEr. Let him pursue his own inquiries.

Mr. Repriep. The question is whether your inquiry was confined
to the broad question of whether the remedy was good for anything
or not, and, assuming the remedy not to be good for anything
whether that was assumed to be fraud, or whether the possibilit of
the man being sincere in advertising and selling something which
was useless was taken into consideration?

Mr. Goopwin. We took all these matters into consideration.

Mr. Reoriewp. Had you any evidence before you that.the man
was not sincere in his advocacy of these medic'mes{

Mr. GoopwiN. I do not remember that we had. I do not know
that we had any evidence aside from the fact that he was telling the
people that he had a sure cure for cancer, when, in fact, he had no
cure for cancer.

Mr. ALexanper. You do not state that as a fact, that he had no
sure cure for cancer? :

Mr. Goobwix. I state it as my belief.

Mr. Arexanper. Was your belief based on the evidence of experts
in the matter?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir; I stated that as my belief.

Mr. Reorierp. May 1 illustrate my contention with a little ex-
perience? I know a lady who went to the Harvard Medical School
and was there diagnosed by three professors of the Harvard Medical
School in Boston as having a case of malignant sarcoma. That was
many vears ago. Within a very few weeks another great hospital
authority in Boston told her that she was entirely free from any
malignant disease of any nature. Now, I ask if there was any op-
portunity here for the man to have been deceived or misled, while
still being honest? The question in my mind is as to the righteous-
ness of making a man a (}raud who may simply be mistaken. I amn
telling you these things from actual experience.
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." Mr. Goopwin. I have heard of such cases. Dr. J. Ford Thompson
told of a case in my office which equaled that, and perhaps sur-
passed it. But suppose this man had believed that he could cure
cancer with this medicine he had when, in fact, he could not cure
cancer with it, and he was getting money from the people all over
the country. Perhaps their condition in life does not amount to
anything, but for the most part this money was coming from people
who could illy spare the money. He was getting money from all
over the gountry for something that’did the people who purchased
it no good.

Mr.gALEXANDER. Right there, does the testimony in this case bear
out that statement? .

Mr. Goopwin. If they had cancer——

Mr. ALExaNDER (interposing). But they had some trouble they
called cancer? :

Mr. GoopwiN. Sometimes.

Mr. ALexanper. And had they not failed to get a cure from their
regular physicians?

ﬁr. Goopwin. I think the testimony states some such case as that.

Mr. Arexanper. And they applied to Dr. Mixer, and he furnished
them a remedy which resulted in a cure?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. ALexanper. Well, is that a fraud?

Mr. GoopwiN. They were not defrauded.

Mr. ALEXANDER. C{rtainly not; they had a disease, a malignant
sore that they thought was ‘cancer. N)(')w, they may have been mis-
taken about that, but here is a man who does produce a remedy.
While the doctors say that it is not cancer, and that the remedy 1s
not a remedy for cancer, is this man to be excluded from the mails
because he does produce a remedy for those whom the doctors could
not cure?

Mr. Goopwin. That is not a fair statement of it. In the first
place, if it is a malignant sore, this remedy will not cure it.

Mr. Arexanper. But they did cure it. Here is the testimony.

Mr. Goopwin. None of a malignant sore.

Mr. Arexanper. Did you have testimony from anybody that had
been cured of any disease? You ignored that, did you not?

Mr. GooopwiN. I do not say that I ignored it absolutely.

Mr. Avexanper. The statement is made in that letter that he has
cancers preserved in alcohol which he removed. Did you take that
into consideration '
cl%r(.i GoopwiN. He did not offer it until after the case was con-

uded.

Mr. RepFrernp. Suppose the woman of whom I spoke to you, and
whose case was diagnosed as cancer, as a matter of fact had nothing
of the kind. Suppose that woman had gone to Dr. Mixer and got
hold of his medicine, taken it, and was cured by natural causes. She
would have been sincere in her belief in the efficacy of the medicine.
&a&is there to show that the doctor was not equally sincere in his

ie .

Mr, Goopwin. He may have been.

Mr. Reorrerp. Did he represent himself to you as a physician

Mr. GoopwiN. He certainly represented himself in the advertise-
ments as a physician.
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Mr. Reprrerp. Directly so?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Can not a man be a doctor without having graduated
from a medical school ? : . i .

_Mr. Stemp. He ought to have a license in order to practice medi-
cine.

Mr. AusTiN. Are not all of these advertisements signed “Dr.
Mixer,” and is it not a fact that his father, who was represented as
a member of the firm, had been dead for years?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. Towner. Is it not true that the evidence in the case before
you showed that the Dr. Mixer who was the only physician in the -
firm had been dead long before this?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir; many years before this.

Mr. Towner. Long before these charges were made?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. Towner. Did not the evidence show that at the time these
charges were made and at the time these advertisements were pub-
lished there was no Dr. Mixer?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. TownNer. Can a man be a doctor without being a physician?

Mr. Goopwin. I do not think he could be a doctor of medicine
without being a physician.

Mr. Towner. The words “ doctor of medicine ” have a significance
wllllich ;neans or implies the securing of a degree from a medical
college ?

Mlg GoopwiN. That is my understanding.

Mr. RepFierp. Is there anything in this evidence to show that he
was a doctor of medicine? )

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

Mr. TownNer. Then you had before you this kind of a case: The
case of a man who was not a physician, but who claimed that he had
a secret remedy that was a sure cure, or, at least a cure, for cancer,
and who was advertising himself as a physician and pretending that
on the diagnoses that were sent in by mail he could cure this disease,
if they would send the money for it?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. TownNEr. Then, there was fraud in the fact that he was pre-
tending to be a physician while he was not a physician?

Mr. Goopwin. I think so. '

Mr. TowNer. And then there was fraud in the fact that he was
pretending to diagnose by mail cases that could not be diagnosed by
mail, as shown by the uncontradicted evidence?
hMllx" GoopwiN. There is no contradiction in the evidence on that, I
think.

Mr. TowNER. And also fraud in the fact that he was pretending
to cure this disease by the use of remedies every one of which were
known from time immemorial almost as cures for superficial dis-
eases ¢

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. Towner. And there was further fraud in the fact that he
claimed to have a secret remedy that was known and discovered by
himself or his father, and that he had a secret formula that no one
clse had any knowledge of?
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Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. Towner. And did not that constitute fraud?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. Towner. And did he not obtain money upon false representa-
tions through the mail?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir. :

Mr. McCoy. I am going to read from Webster’s Dictionary the
definition of the word “doctor.” It is as follows: “A teacher; one
skilled in a profession or branch of knowledge; a learned man.”
If a man uses the word “doctor,” he may come within that classifi-
cation without having a license to practice medicine or have a medi-
cal eduction, may he not?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. So there was no reason why he should not use the
term “doctor ” if he were one skilled in a profession or branch of
knowledge, or a learned man. Do you find anything here in this
case which says that he was a doctor of medicine? We are getting
down to the use of words by this man which has been claimed to
constitute a fraud. Now, I ask you if it is a fact that he claimed that
he was practicing medicine?

Dr. Moraan. The matters discussed here pertain to medical sub-
jects only. It is significant. :

Mr. McCoy. Then, if he had no such experience in the practice of
medicine, but if he were skilled in the use of medicines, is there
anything to show that he did not have the right to use the word
“doctor ?

Mr. GoopwiN. He might have the legal right to use the term
“doctor.” You can go out to the ball park and find any number of
doctors out there playing ball.

Mr. Avstin. Is it not a fact that some States have laws on this
subject. and that it is a violation of law for a man to clainy to be a
doctor when he is not one?

Mr. Goopwin. I think so.

- Mr. Austin. Is it not a fact that some of the States in the Union
have laws on the subject, and that it is a violation of law for a man
to pretend to be a doctor if he it not a doctor?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Was there any such law in the State in which the
Mixers were practicing?

Mr. Gooowin. I do not know. T have an impression that Dr.
Mixer did attempt to procure a license to practice medicine from
the State of Indiana and failed to do so. I am not certain about
that, however.

Mr. McCoy. What State was he in?

Mr. Goopwin. Michigan.

Mr. McCoy. Is there any law of the State of Michigan which made
it illegal for him to use the word “doctor™ in connection with his
name’

Mr. Goopwix. I do not know.

Mr. McCoy. Let us assume that there was such a law. Is it any
art of the business of the Post Office Department to enforce that
aw?

Mr. Goopwix. Not at all.

Mr. McCoy. I want to ask you in regard to these scheduled an-

swers we have here to the question that was propounded. I will ask
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you whether, in your opinion, those three or four physicians who
stated that they did not know of any remedy for cancer did not give
a more intelligent and more scientific answer to the question than
those who answered positively “no”?

Mr. Goopwin. T have no opinion on that subject.

hMr.9 McCoy. Was it not your business to form an opinion upon
them?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Do you say it was not your business to form an opin-
ion on those answers given by the doctors? .

Mr. GoopwiN. On any questions put to me it was my business, of
course, to take these answers into consideration in forming my opin-
ion, but it was not my business to judge as to which one of the doc-
tors gave the most intelligent opinion. I should say that these three
were perhaps more conservative, but whether their opinions were
more reliable, I can not say.

Mr. McCoy. Was it not your business to form an intelligent opin-
ion in this matter?

Mr. Gooowin. I think so.

Mr. McCoy. Then, was it not your business to go through the nec-
essary intellectual operations in deciding what weight should be
given to these answers?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Then, I ask you whether, as a matter of human knowl-
edge and experience, the answers of these doctors were entitled to
more credit and weight than those who answered positively “no” ?

Mr. Goobwin. I can not say that they were more reliable. T can
only say that they were more conservative.

Mr. McCor. I'ask you whether you had before you any evidence
of any kind of regularly admitted and duly licensed practitioners of
medicine to the effect that any case which had at any time been under
their observation had yielded to the application of the remedies ad-
vertised by the Mixers?

Mr. Goopwin. Well, if I had any such evidence before me, it was
in the shape of letters and affidavits. No such physicians appeared
before me.

Mr. McCoy. Did you have any such affidavits?

Mr. Goopwi~. I do not know.

Mr. McCoy. Will you look through your papers and see?

Mr. Goopwin. I think that Mr. Colgrove's letter refers to some
such affidavit. Whether there were any such I do not know. This
was some time ago, and I have a good many of these cases. I think
we had a number of letters from people who had taken this treat-
ment, and some claimed to have been benefited.

Mr. McCoy. I am not concerned with that for the time being. If
you can not find the affidavits, I will put a supposititious case to you:
Suppose you had an affidavit from a regular physician, a skilled phy-
sician, duly admitted to practice medicine and entitled to call him-
self “ doctor,” and that affidavit contained the statement that he had
examined a given case and had diagnosed it as cancer; that subse-
quently the person afflicted bought some of these remedies and ap-
plied them, and this doctor testified, or the fact was, that the cancer
disappeared. What weight would you intellectually give to the posi-
tive assertion of such a physician as against the mere negative state-
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ment of other physicians who stated that cancer could not be cured,
that being a general statement?

Mr. Goopwin. It would depend largely upon the physician and
what I knew about him; that 1s, the reputation of the physician.

Mr. McCoy. In other words, you would weigh the reputations of
two physicians who were engaged in practice regularly, one of them
making the general statement that cancer could not be cured and the
other making the affirmative statement that this cure was apparently
effected by these remedies?

Mr. GoopwiN. I would take that into consideration.

) M;‘ McCoy. Then you are sure you would take that into considera-
tion?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir. Of course, if testimony of the tenor which
vou suggest was presented to me from a man I had never heard of
before, and a physician like Dr. Thompson should say to me that the
affidavit COUI({) not be true, and that it must be a mistake, I should
think that Dr. Thompson was probably right.

Mr. McCoy. Let me ask you this question: Did the astorney for
the Mixers, or the Mixers themselves, suggest that they would bring
before you here in Washington a physician who was willing to
testify that he believed that a cure had been effected by tiese
remedies ¢

Mr. GoopwiN. I remember no such suggestion, except as made in
that letter. ,

Mr. McCoy. Do you remember writing to anybody saying that it
was not necessary to bring such person here?

Mr. GoopwiN. It may have been so after the hearing.

Mr. McCoy. But not before the hearing?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Will you have somebody to ascertain whether there
is any such correspondence ?

Mr. GoopwiN. I think the correspondence is all here.

Mr. McCoy. Judge Towner has asked you whether these remedies,
or the ingredients of these remedies, which are used by these people
were not well-known remediesand long used in theattempt,at least,
to cure malignant sores, or whatever you please, and whether they
had not been found to be useless as cures. Let me ask you this: Is
it possible in compounding remedies to so use them skillfully that
they might be effective, while, if compounded in a different way,
they might not be effective?

Mr. GoopwiN. I am not a physician or chemist, and am not quali-
fied to answer that question.

Mr. McCoy. Did you make any inquiry as to whether or not that
might be true?

Ir. GoopwiN. The evidence before me in this case was that these
remedies might be beneficial in nonmalignant cases; that they would
perhaps be palliative in the malignant cases; but that they could
not cure cancer. That was the evidence before me.

Mr. ReprieLo. Who gave that testimony ?

Mr. GooowiN. I do not remember who gave that, but it was the
doctors. There was further evidence that they were well-known
remedies, in use for many years.

Mr. Reprierop. But did you claim that in the performance of your
duty, in determining to issue the fraud order, that the good faith of



EXPENDITURES IN THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT. 2035

the person against whom the charge was made had nothing to do
with the matter? :

Mr. Goopwin. I never claimed that at all.

Mr. Repriewp. Is it any part of your duty under the law to
inquire whether a remedy that is advertised as an absolute cure for
a certain disease, and which may not be effective in all cases, is,
nevertheless, apparently effective in some cases? Did you inquire
into that? Would you, if-you found a remedy which apparentl
did act in some cases and did not act in others, therefore conclude
that a fraud was perpetrated on the public by a man who honestly
believed that it could cure every case?

Mr. Goobwin. I do not know that I can answer that question.

Mr. Repriewp. I want to know how you handled this case. Here
is a man who believes that he has a remedy; he says he can cure
every case of cancer; there are a great many sores called cancers.
Now, if it is a fact that that remeg;: in a great many cases appar-
ently cured some things which were called cancer, but failed abso-
lute{y in other cases, 1s that man a fraud because he claims he can
cure all cases of cancer? . ’

Mr. Goopwin. Well, he is making a false claim. I would not say
t{m_t he was a fraud for that reason alone, but he is making a false
claim.

Mr. Reprierp. Is it any part of your duty in connection with
these matters to issue a fraud order against any man who makes a
false claim to induce people to part with their money? ’

Mr. GooowiN. No, sir.

Mr. Reprierp. Then, why did you do it in one case and not in
another?

Mr. Goobpwin. In the first place, of course, there are very many
claims. The chairman asked me a few minutes ago about the
claims of patent medicines, and whether the claims in this case were
worse than those in other proprietary medicines. I want to say
that under the statute we have no jurisdiction over cases where the
product is sold as proprietary medicines are sold. They are sold
over the counter. A person comes to the store and buys the goods.
He does not send to the manufacturer who advertises the medicine,
and send the money for them through the mail. These goods are
sold over the counter. That takes the case from our jurisdiction.
We only have jurisdiction of cases where people are receiving the
money or other thing of value through the mail—that is, where they
are doing a mail-order business.

Mr. McCoy. Is it any part of the business of the Post Office De-
partment to issue fraud orders in all cases where it believes that a
man is making promises which he can not fulfill, or where there is
evidence to that effect?

Mr. Goopwin. T would not say in all cases.

Mr. McCoy. Why not?

Mr. GoopwiN. A man may make promises which he can not ful-
fill and yet not be a fraud. You might believe that he could not
fulfill the promises, and yet it might develop that he could fulfill
them. I would not be willing to act on such a question on mere
belief. :
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Mr. McCoy. Yet you have admitted that the Mixers might have
believed they had something that was effective.

Mr. Goopwin. Well, I do not know whether T have admitted that
or not. I do not think they did believe it.

Mr. McCoy. You have no means of getting at their minds physi-
cally to find out what they believe about it?

r. Goopwin. No, sir.

Mr. McCov. Then, take the general case of a man who believes
that he has something that will accomplish a purpose. It may be a

atent medicine or a booming land scheme, or anything you please.

s the belief on the part of the Post Office Department that this man
can not make good sufficient to warrant you in issuing a fraud order?

Mr. GoopwiN. I do not think so.

Mr. McCoy. Let us take any case. ILet us take the case of a man
who says he can accomplish a certain thing, and you have reason to
think that he does not believe it. Suppose you have evidence that
he does not believe it. Nevertheless, you think he can accomplish
the thing that he says he can accomplish. Would you issue a fraud
order in that case?

Mr. Goopwix. I never had such a case as that.

Mr. McCoy. What is the definition of “fraud,” or what facts,
coming within that definition, will lead the Post Office Department
to act?

Mr. Goopwin. The statute says that if the Postmaster General
"is satisfied that a party is operating a scheme to obtain money by
false and fraudulent representations through the mail, that it is
his duty to issue a fraud order, and that is the basis upon which
we act—that is, that he is operating a scheme to obtain money or
other thing of value by false and '%raudu]ent promises and repre-
sentations.

Mr. McCoy. Will vou define what is * false ’? '

Mr. GoopwiN. I do not think any man living can give an abstract
definition for what “ fraud ” is.

Mr. McCoy. I can cite you to books that are full of definitions of
“fraud.”

Mr. Gooowin. You can judge a concrete case, but you can not
give an abstract definition of “ fraud.” .

Mr. McCoy. Please state what, in the law books which you act
upon, is considered in the issuance of a fraud order within the terms
of the statute? :

Mr. Goopwin. The obtaining of money or other things of value
- by means of false and fraudulent representations.

Mr. McCoy. That is a general statement. What is the indicia of
fraudulent representations and false pretenses on which you act?
What is it that impels vou to say that a man has been doing some-
thing that is prohibited by that statute?

Mr. Goopwin. That depends on the case.

Mr. McCov. Take this race as an illustration.  Where did you dis-
cover the fraud?

Mr. Goopwin. In the first place, I discovered fraud in the claim
that be was a doctor.

Mr. McCoy. But, according to the dictionary definition, he is a
doctor.
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Mr. GoopwiN. I was not investigating that matter. I was taking
into consideration the impression that he was endeavoring to create
by the use of the title. Then I discovered fraud in the fact——

Mr. McCoy (interposing). Let us take up that question

Mr. AvstiN (interposing). That is not fair——

Mr. GoopwiN (interposing). Let me answer it.

Mr. McCoy. I want to develop that particular statement. I do not
want to let that get out of my mind now.

Mr. GooowIN. You have asked me a question, and I do not want
to let that get out of my mind. In the next place, he was claiming
to diagnose cancer by means of these blank diagnoses, which, in m
judgment, was impossible for him to do. The evidence of the physi-
cians was that it was impossible to do that. The evidence of the
ghysicians before me had been that it is impossible to accurately

iagnose cancer withont a microscopic examination.

The CramrmMan. I want to interrupt you at this point. Have you
any literature or any representations by Dr. Mixer that he could
accurately diagnose cancer by that means?

Mr. GooowiN. I think so.

The CuamrMax. Produce them.

Mr. Gooowin. I will do so. I have some of his literature here.
He states that he is able to give a good diagnosis. That is from
his printed advertisement.

Dr. Morcax. I have his statement here, which I will read:

Many of the guestions may seem useless and unnecessary to you, but may
be the very question of vital importance to us and give a key to the prime factor
in your case that leads up to your present condition and a correct diagnosis.
These reports are carefully tiled for reference from time to time in order that
we may glive you the best possible service and judge correctly of your improve-
ment and medicine you require to perfect a cure.

He further says:
By our system of questions we are able to get a very good diagnosis.

The CuairmaN. But he does not say an accurate diagnosis?

Mr. Goopwin. He says a correct diagnosis,

The Cuairman. Will you now come back to the point where you
were interrupted ? : ' '

Mr. McCoy. Judge Goodwin, when you were interrupted by some
questions, you had reached the diagnosis point.

Mr. Goopwin. Now, another fraudulent feature of the case was
that he claimed to have discovered a new medicine when, in point of
fact, it was not a discovery, but they were old remedies used many
years by practitioners. Of course, the prime element of fraud in
the case was that he was claiming that these medicines would cure
cancer when they would not cure it.

Mr. McCoy. Were those all of the elements of fraud?

Mr. Goobpwix. I do not think of others now. The use of this ad-
}'ertisement in the so-called Public Iealth Medical Journal was a

raud.

Mr. Austin. May I ask a question bearing on that point? Judge,
T will ask you if this was not one of the matters submitted to you at
that time [passing paper to Mr. Goodwin]?

Mr. Goopwix. %'es. sir.
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Mr. AusTIN. Does it not read:

Sure cure for cancer, scrofula, running sores, and all blood diseases. A
never-failing cure luckily discovered by an old Michigan doctor.

Mr. Gooowin. Yes, sir. '

Mr. AustiN. It reads further:

Have you got cancer, tumor, ulcer, abscesses, fever sores, goitre, catarrh,
salt rheum, rheumatism, piles, eczema, scald head, or scrofula in any form?
* * * We have cured others and can cure you. .

That was one of the claims before you?

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCoy. Did you have any evidence before you when you acted
on this case that any person who had bought any of these remedies
was mislead by anything that these alleges doctors did or said into
the belief that they, or either of them, were doctors of medicine
regularly licensed to practice?

r. GooowiN. I do not know whether there was or not; I do
not remember. I assume that they represented themselves as regular
practicing physicians. That was the evident intention of this litera-
ture. ’

(Thereupon, at 12 o’clock noon, the committee took a recess until
10 o'clock a. m., Saturday, August 5, 1911.)

CoMMITTEE ON EXPENDITURES 1N THE
Post OFFICE DEPARTMENT,
House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
Saturday, August 5, 1911.

The committee met at 10 o’clock a. m., Hon. William A. Ashbrook
(chairman) presiding.

The following members of the committee were present: Messrs.
Alexander, McCoy, Austin, and Slemp.

STATEMENT OF HON. RUSSELL P. GOODWIN, ASSISTANT ATTOR-
- NEY GENERAL FOR THE POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT—Con-
tinued.

The Crairman. We will proceed with the examination. Judge
Goodwin, I assume that you have a reasonably accurate knowledge
of this Drs. Mixer case?

Mr. Goopwin. I think so.

The CrammaN. And you have not relied upon those under you or
superior to you for your information in reaching your decision?

r. GoopwiN. Not at all. Of course, I received information from
those under me, but I did not have anything to do with those supe-
rior to me in arriving at my conclusions.

The CHAIRMAN. Iégan you tell us this morning who prepared the
citation that you found on your desk?

Mr. Goopwin. It was dictated, undoubtedly, by Mr. Keyser, my
assistant, and it was undoubtedly signed by him. The C(ipi which
I had here does not 'show by whom it was signed, but ave no
doubt it was signed by Mr. Keyser.
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Tl;e CHarMAN. Who authorized Mr. Keyser to prepare the cita-
tion

Mr. Goopwin. That is his duty in our office, to prepare these cita-
tions. There was no special authorization for it.

The CHamMmaN. There was some inspiration for the action, was
there not, on the part of some one? }

Mr. GoopwiN. Well, I do not know what you mean by “inspira-
tion.” As I suggested, the complaint was made by Dr. Morgan.
The complaint, as I understand it, was made by Dr. Morgan, and
Mr. Keyser got the evidence, or such as was presented to him, and,
after his investigation, made up his mind that it was a matter that
ought to be investigated, and prepared the citation.

e CHAIRMAN. %’ou do not know what prompted Dr. Morgan to
make the complaint, do you?

Mr. GoopwIN. Dr. Morgan, as I understand it, as a part of his
giutiles at the Agricultural Department, investigates matters of this

nd.

The CramrMAN. You do not understand or know what prompted
Dr. Morgan to make the complaint?

Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir; except that it was in the line of his duty.

The Cuamrman. You stated yesterday that this matter was not
referred to the post-office inspectors. Is that correct?

Mr. Gooowin. It was not referred to them to my knowledge.
There may have been some investigation by Xost-oﬁice inspectors in
regard to it, but the information that we acted upon, I am informed,
came from the Department of Agriculture.

The Cuamrman. Have you refreshed your memory in regard to
this case recently ?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; no more than to read that memorandum;
that is, the memorandum on which the order was based.

The Cuairman. Is it not a fact that Inspector Pond, about July
25, 1909, investigated this case and reported that there was no com-
plaint and no cause for action?

Mr. Goopwin. I do not know.

The CHairMaN. Is it not a fact that this report is on file among
your papers or on file in the Post Office Department ?

Mr. Goopwin. It may be.

The CHaIRMAN. But you have no knowledge of it?

Mr. GoopwiNn. No, sir; I have no knowledge of it.

The CHAIRMAN. Is it not a fact that on December 17, 1908, you
yourself requested an inspection in this case?

Mr. Goopwin. I do not know.

The Crairman. Did you not, on May 25, 1909, state to Congress-
man Hamilton, of Michigan, that there was nothing in the files rela-
tive to this case? .

Mr. Goopwin. I can not say whether I did or not; I may have or I
may not have.

he CrairMaN. Well, do you know whether there was at that time
anything on file?
r. GoopwiN. I do not know now.

The CrARMAN. Can you tell from those papers?

Mr. GoopwiN. I can tell by the records in the office.

The Cramrman. Did not Inspector Pond report on September 15,
1909, that a complete formula of these medicines was on file in the
Department of Agriculturef .
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Mr. GoopwIN. I do not know.

The Cuairman. Is it not a fact that in June, 1909, a great number
of inquiry letters in regard to Drs. Mixer were sent out, and that
replies were received which are now a part of your record ¢

Ir. GoopwiN. I find here this batch of papers and letters. I have
not looked at them, and it may be that these are replies to some in-
quiries of that kind.

Mr. AustiN. With the permission of the chairman, I would like
to suggest that some persons connected with the department ought
to read over all these papers-and get all the facts in their minds, so
we can get answers to these questions, or any explanation that the
officials of the department desire to make. Those who prepared the
citation might do this work.

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir. I do not remember these dates. It was
some time in 1909 that Mr. Hamilton wrote to me.

The CHamRMAN. Yes.

Mr. Goopwin. Well, the fact is that if Mr. Hamilton came in there
and inquired about it I would have made an inquiry from my clerks
as to whether there was anything in the office, and would have given
him the answers that came to me. That would be the method by
which it would be done.

The Cnairman. I assume from your replies that you have made
no examination of these papers since you received my letter asking
you to be present and give this information?

Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir; I have had no opportunity to do it.

The CHarmAN. Is it a fact that under a ruling of the Agriculfure
Department Dr. Mixer was violating the pure-food act in advertis-
ing these medicines?

r. GooowiN. I understand that he was.

The CHArMAN. Do you know whether there has been any recent
decision by the Supreme Court of the United States touching cases
of this kind?

Mr. GoopwiN. I understand that there has been.

The CuairmaN. What is the decision?

Mr. GoopwiN. I do not know. T understand there has been a de-
cision, but I can not give the details of that decision.

The CHairMaN. Is it not a fact that that decision of the Supreme
Court holds that this is not a violation of the law ?

Mr. Goobwix. I donot think that there has been any decision of the
Supreme Court on this case.

he CrairymaN., Well; on a case similar to this.

Mr. GoobwiN. There was a decision, of which I saw the newspaper
account. I saw something about the decision of the Dr. Johnson
case, which held that a false representation as to the curative proper-
ties of the medicine did not come with that statute, or something to
that effect.

The Cuairyman. Do you know when it was that the chemical ex-

erts in the Agricultural Department analyzed the medicines of the

rs. Mixer, and made a report as to the ingredients of the medicine?

Mr. GooowiN. There is a copy of the report of the Postmaster
General here, which was made along about the time of this hearing,
or shortly before this hearing.

The CralrMaN. When was that?

Mr. Goopwin. It is here, I think.
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The CuairmaN. What is the date of it?

Mr. Goopwin. This report from Mr. Pond, the post-office inspector,
to the inspector in charge at Chicago, who was Gen. James E. Stewart,
is a report in this case.

The Crairman. What is the first knowledge you had of that re-

ort ?
P Mr. Gooowin. I do not know. :

The CHaIrRMAN. Are not these reports and papers referred to you?

Mr. Goopwin. They are referred to my office. )

The CoairMan. Then, as a matter of fact, when you issue a fraud
order, the case is passed upon by those under you and a recommenda-
tion is made? ' '

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

The CuairmaN. And you cause the fraud order to be issued with-
out investigation by you?

Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir. .

The CrairMaN. It seems to have been done in this particular case.

Mr. Goopwin. It does not seem to have been in this case at all.

The CuairMaN. You do not seem to have any knowledge of the
case.

Mr. Goopwin. Well, I think I have. Now, as a matter of fact, as
I stated yesterday, the case was prepared for presentation to me by
Mr. Keyser, my assistant, in connection with officials of the Depart-
ment of Agriculture. When the parties came there for a hearing
Mr. Keyser presented to me such matters as he considered material;
the answer was made, and I passed upon the case as presented to
me there. _

The CuarmaN. Did you inform Dr. Mixer or his attorney that
it was not necessary for them to bring with therh any witnesses?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; T did not.

Mr. ALexaNpEr. Have you found Dr. Mixer’s answer yet?

Mr. Goopwin. Mr. Keyser told me, when I spoke to him about it
yesterday, that his recollection was that Dr. Mixer’s attorney with-
drew the answer after the decision. He said he had some exhibits
in the way of testimonials attached to it, and that he wanted to
withdraw the answer, and it was returned to him.

Mr. AustiN. This decision in the Johnson case, to which reference
has been made, will not operate against the issuance of fraud orders
by the Post Office Department ?

Mr. GoopwiN. Not at all. In this particular case, Dr. Mixer was
indicted and plead guilty and paid his fine.

Mr. AusTiN. In which case; in this case?

Mr. GoopwiN. In this case we have under consideration now.

Mr. AustiN. Did he take an appeal ?

Mr. GoopwIN. No, sir; he paid a fine; he was indicted and plead
guilty to a violation of the pure-food law and paid his fine.

Mr. Austin. I will ask you to file a copy of that for the record, if
you have it.

Mr. McCoy. Do you mean that he was indicted for the thing that
you were investigating ?

Mr. GoopwiN. He was indicted for misbranding his medicines. A
cogi' of the notice of judgment is here.

r. McCoy. This notice of judgment applies to another case. He
plead guilty in another case.
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Dr. Morean. This was a case of misbranding, and the alcohol
present in the product was not declared upgn the label. All of these
medicines were included in the Post Offick case, and there are one
or two in addition.

Mr. ALexaNpER. The Supreme Court, in the case referred to, held
that the pure-food law did no more than to provide that the ingredi-
ents of the so-called remedies should be plainly marked on the bottle
and that under the law a man could not be convicted for making
claims as to its curative properties.

Mr. GoopwiN. So I understand.

Mr. ALexanper. [f that decision had been rendered before he was
tried, he would have been acquitted. .

Mr. McCoy. What was he indicted for—for violating a post-office
regulation, or for violating the pure-food act?

r. GooowiN. For a violation of the pure-food act.

-Mr. McCoy. Then, it has nothing to do with this matter.

The CraikmaN. Let me inquire again when it was that the doctors
in the Agricultural Department analyzed these medicines and re-
ported the ingredients to you? Do you know the date of that report ?

Mr. GoopwiN. Here is the report to the Postmaster General, dated
August 20, 1909.

The CuarmMaN. From whom?

Mr. GoopwiN. From the Department of Agriculture, signed by
Willis L. Moore, Acting Secretary. It is stamped “ received ” in the
office of the chief clerk “ August 25.” Now there is nothing to in-
dicate that this report came to my office. I do not know anything
‘about that. It appears that it went through the chief inspector’s office.
Here is a letter of transmission to the chief inspector from Chicago
asking for samples to be submitted to the Department of Agricul-
ture for analysis. Now, whether the chief inspector sent that di-
rectly to the department or wrote the letter of transmission to the
Postmaster General, or whether he wrote the letter of transmission
for the Postmaster General, I do not know. There is nothing here
to show.

Mr. Avstin. If there is no objection, I would like to have this
printed in the record. T refer to this notice of judgment.

The CuairMan. It can be done.

(The matter referred to is as follows:)

[F. & D. No. 1348. 1. 8. No. 7-b. 1Issued March 27, 1911. TUnited States Department of
Agriculture, office of the Sccretary. Notice of judgment No. 797, food and drugs act.]

MISBRANDING OF A DRUG PRODUCT—'* MIXER'S CANCER AND SCROFULA SYRUP.”

On or about April 18, 1909, Charles W. Mixer, doing business under the name
of Drs. Mixer, Hastings, Mich., shipped from the State of Michigan to the
District of Columbia a quantity of a drug product consisting of seven packages
constituting an alleged treatment for the cure of cancer, labeled, respectively :
(a) “Mizxer's Cancer and Scrofula Syrup”; (b) “No. 1 Wash”; (c¢) “No. 1
Alterative”; (d) ‘Cancer Reducer”; (e) *“Cancer Paste”; (f) “Cancer
Salve”; (g) ‘ Cleanoine Soap Powder.” With these drugs was a pamphlet
called “The Truth,” and in said pamphlet and on the labels of the packages
above referred to were numerous statements as to the curative value of the
treatment in question. Samples of this shipment were procured and analyzed
by the Bureau of Chemistry, United States Department of Agriculture, and
the above seven packages were found to contain respectively: (&) A syrup
containing potassium iodide, a small amount of vegetable ingredient similar to
sarsaparilla, methyl salicylate flavoring, and about 6 per cent alcohol; (b) an
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ordinary solution of hydrogen peroxide; (c) a hydro-alcoholic solution contain-
ing a large amount of glycerine and a small-amount of vegetable matter similar
to gentian; (d) a strongly alceholic solution of camphoraceous ofls combined
with considerable glycerine; (e) an ointment paste made up with vaseline, in-
cluding a large amount of ground flaxseed and camphoraceous oils and a sub-
stance resembling hyoscyamus or belladonna; (f) a salve composed of vaseline;
(g) a powdered soap with borax and thymol. As the findings of the analyst
and report thereon indicated that the product was misbranded within the mean-
ing of the Food and Drugs Act of June 30, 1906, the said Charles W. Mixer
was afforded an opportunity for hearing. As it appeared after hearing held
that the said shipment was made in violation of the act, the Secretary of Agri-
culture reported the facts to the Attorney-General with a statement of the evi-
dence upon which to base a prosecution.

On November 5, 1910, a criminal information was filed in the District Court
of the United States for the Western District of Michigan against the said
Charles W. Mixer charging the above shipment and alleging that the drugs so
shipped were misbranded, in that the.alcobol present in the product labeled
““ Cancer and Scrofula Cure” was not declared on the label on the container
thereof ; in that the words “ For the cure of Cancer” appearing on the label of
the.carton enclosing said remedy were misleading and deceptive, as they would
induce the purchaser to believe said product to be a cure for cancer, which was
contrary to fact; in that the statement * Greatest cancer * * * remedy of
the age,” appearing on the label of said carton, was false and misleading, inas-
much as said product was not the greatest cancer remedy of the age; in that
the following statements appearing in the pamphlet above referred to. packed
with the product, were false and misleading: ‘ Our remedies give safe, speedy
and certain relief to the most horrible forms of cancer of the breast, face,
stomach, and womb ”’; “ Our blood remedies cures and cures to stay cured”;
“ We have equally as good success with internal cancer as with external, and
rarely fail to cure”; “ Thousands of people die of cancer and malignant growth
every year who would surely have been cured by our treatment’; ‘ Diseases
for which our treatment is especially intended and will cure. Cancers
* * »7. “Thousands suffering from cancer and its kindred diseases have
been perfectly cured by this great discovery”; *“ We have cured 868 per cent of
all cases who have taken our treatment. This, we believe, is a better showing
than any cancer specialist in this country can make”; * This valuable treat-
ment is a positive safeguard and preventive against the development of cancer
germ ”; “A medicine sufficiently powerful to rid the system of every cancer
* * * germ,” sald statements being false and misleading because they tend
to mislead the purchaser into the belief that the product would cure cancer,
which was contrary to the facts, and because the alcohol present in the product
labeled ‘ Cancer Reducer ” was not declared upon the label.

On November 11, 1910. the defendant entered a plea ¢f guilty to the above
information and the court imposed a fine of $25.

%Tlnézéxotice is given pursuant to section 4 of the Food and Drugs Act of June

, 1 .

W. M. Hays,
Acting Secretary of Agriculture.

WASHINGTON, D. C.,, March 1, 1911. .

Mr. AvstiN. T would like, with the permission of the chair, to
ask a question or two of Mr. Goodwin. Judge Goodwin, why does
not the Post Office Department go systematically to work against
these quacks and gold-brick propositions who are advertising through
the columns of the newspapers all over the country?

Mr. Goopwin. Well, tﬁe department is doing its best.

Mr. Avstin. Why do they not increase or double their force of
inspectors and clean them up—lock, stock, and barrel ?

Mr. GooowiN. The department can not do that now. The matter
of increasing or doubling the force depends on Congress. We can
not employ more men than Congress authorizes us to employ.

Mr. Avustin. I would like to have an increase of the appropriation
for this purpose, because I consider this business a most outrageous

96509—No. 26—11—3
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imposition and fraud being perpetrated upon the people of the
country. I want to call attention to two cases right here so you can
make a memorandum and go after them. I have here a copy of the
Woman’s National Weekly of the issue of July 15, 1911, and call
your attention to this advertisement: .

Prof. Samuel originates peculiar method of treatment. His phenomenal
success causes enmity of doctors.

The advertisement goes on to say:

This I8 a secret that has taken many years of my life to accomplish. I can
only say that my results are obtained treating disease by dropping a colorless
liquid, which I prepare, into the eye. Strange as it may seem so-called incur-
able cases of consumption, Bright's disease, dropsy, epileptic fits, nervous pros-
tration arc treated in this apparently miraculous way. My system is based
abolutely on scientific principles. °

There is a foot of absolutely false statements made here in two
columns of this paper.

Mr. Goopwin. Is he doing a mail-order business?

Mr. Austin. This paper is going through the mails.

Mr. Goopwin. That is not sufficient under the statute.

Mr. Austin. Well, look it up.

Here is another advertisement:

Women made beautiful in 24 hours.

Mr. GoopwiN. I am informed that they are at work on that case
now.

Mr. AustiN. Well, double your. force, and work night and day
on it. These are simply samples.

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes; that is true, and yet I was severely criticized
one time because the clerks in my office cut out a lot of advertise-
ments to have them investigated. The statement was made that I
was trying to increase the business of my office in an unwarrantable
way by doing that.

Mr. McCoy. I suggest that you examine the advertisements in the
papers in regard to the sale of stocks. In other words, let us have
the Post Office run all the business of the United States.

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir; that is where we get it; we are between the
devil and the deep blue sea. One side criticizes us for doing too
little and the other side for doing too much. -

Mr. ALexanper. I think the Post Office Department should become
the guardian of the American people. They are non compos mentis,
and the department should issue writs of de lunatico inquirendo
against them.

The Cuairman. It does not appear that the Post Office Depart-
ment requires any further authority to wipe out any concern or
business they might want to exterminate.

Mr. ALexanper. That is the only question, how far they ought

to go. .
’ﬁ:e CuarMaN. Now, I understand that there are no complaints
on file in the Post Office Degmrtment from any person who may have
urchased these remedies of the Drs. Mixer, claiming that they were
rauds?
Mr. Gooowin. I did not say so. I never said that.
The CuamrMaN. You said so in your evidence yesterday, did you
not ¢
Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir; I do not think I did.
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The CaamrMaN. Well, is there any?

Mr. GooowiN. I do not know whether there are or not. There
may be. As I said, here is a package of letters here.

he CrmamMan. Did you have any complaints of this kind before
K:u_ wht(aln? you acted upon this case and caused the fraud order to
issue

Mr. Goopwin. I can not remember to-day whether any such com-
plaints were presented to me at that time or not.

The CrAlRMAN. There certainly were not many of them, or they
would have made some impression on your mind.

Mr. GooowiN. It may or may not have been. I have a.great many
of these cases. This was a year or more ago, and I have not carried
it in my mind at all, and it may or may not have been the case. I
can not remember.

The CuairMaN. You relied largely, then, upon the opinions and
theories of the doctors to whom tﬁis query was sent out, which you
read yesterday, in determining that this was a fraud and a fake?
You decided that there was no cure for cancer, and, consequently,
that this was a fraud? '

Mr. Goopwin. I decided that these medicines would not cure can-
cer. That was the testimony of the doctors—that is, that these par-
ticular medicines would not cure cancer.

The CuairmaN. Is it not a fact that many affidavits were sub-
mitted to you and offered to be submitted to you as testimonials
from those who had used these remedies and claimed that they had
been cured ?

q Mr. Gooowin. There were many letters, and perhaps some affi-
avits.

The Cuamman. Did you give them any consideration?

Mr. Goopwin. 1 conmderegleve thing that was presented.

The CumammaN. But you considered these of no consequence, or
of very little consequence? :

Mr. Goopwin. I considered them not sufficient to offset. the other
testimony.

The Cmamrman. You considered them not sufficient to offset the
testimc;ny of the doctors who stated that there was no cure for
cancer

Mr. Goopwin. All the doctors stated that this medicine would not
cure cancer.

The CrammaN. I do not understand that this query you sent out
made reference to this particular medicine, but simply inquired as
to whether there was a cure or not. .

Mr. Goopwin. Well, that is true of those sent out by mail, but
doctors were present at the hearing and testified before me in regard
to this matter, and they were subjected to cross-examination.

The CHarMAN. Did you give the attorney for the Drs. Mixer an
opportunity to cross-examine some of the doctors?

r. Goopwin. Certainly. . .

Mr. AustiN. You gave a full hearing, and gave full consideration
to the testimony on both sides? )

Mr. GoopwIN. Yes, sir. The case was tried as well as I could try
the case as though I was sitting as a judge in a court.

Mr. Austin. Did you have any prejudice in the case?

Mr. Goopwin. Not the slightest in the world. I had never heard
of this matter until it came up before me.
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Mr. AusTiN. And you were not interested in any gold-brick project
which was running in opposition to this?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir.

The CHairumaN. I have read certain memorandum before me, and
it does not appear that the Drs. Mixer’s attorney cross-examined
the witnesses, nor does it appear that any stenographic record of the
testimony in the case was preserved, if there was any such.

Mr. Goopwin. I do not think there was any stenographic record,
but I know that the attorney was there and cross-examined thé wit-
nesses. He will tell you himself that he cross-examined these doc-
tors. He was there and cross-examined them.

Mr. AustiN. He had the opportunity to cross-examine them ¢

Mr. GoopwiN. Yes, sir; ang he did so.

Mr. AusTiN. And he wrote you a letter expressing his satisfaction
with the hearing?

Mr. Goopwix. Yes, sir. :

The CuairmaN. Do you know anything about a man by the name
of Weinschenk in New York?

Mr. Gooowixn. Yes, sir.

The CirairMaN. Who is he?

Mr. Goopwix. He is a lawyer in New York who has had consider-
able practice before the department in cases of this character, and
also before the Third Assistant Postmaster General on second-class
mail matter questions.

The CHarMaN. He is a fraud-order lawyer, is he not?

Mr. GoppwiN. Practically that; yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN. You do not know about any fee he collected from
Drs. Mixer for services in this case?

Mr. GoobwiN. Dr. Mixer testified before me, and that letter I read
vesterday states that Dr. Mixer paid him a fee of $250 for advice in
regard to his literature.

he CuamrManN. Did he appear before vou as attorney for Dr.
Mixer or did he appear before you against Dr. Mixer? :

Mr. GoopwiN. 1 go not think he a[;peared before me at all in this
case. The.only knowledge I have of his connection with this case
is the letter from Mr. Colgrove. What he states there in that letter
is the only knowledge I have of his connection with this case.

The CuairmaN. Have you a brother who is a fraud-order lawyer?

Mr. Gooowin. No, sir.

The Cuarman. Is Mr. Leonard Goodwin your brother?

Mr. Goopwin. Yes, sir.

The CirairmaN. Is he not regarded and recognized as a fraud-
order lawyer?

Mr. GoopwiN. I can not tell you.

The CuairmaN. Has he appeared before you in cases of this
character?

Mr. Goopwin. No, sir; not in any. .

The CHairmaN. And you have no knowledge of his connection
with any such cases?

Mr. Gooowin. He never appeared before me in any such case. I
have been told by him by other people that he had given some people
who were conducting a mail-order business advice. I have been
told by him and by other people that he did that.

The Cuamrman. Did he ever practice in your department ?
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Mr. GoopwiN. No, sir.

‘Mr. McCoy. Does he practice in the Post Office Department, or
has he done so? '

Mr. Goopwin. Not to my knowledge.

Mr. McCoy. And you told him you wished he would stop giving
advice in matters which might come before your department{

Mr. Goopwin. I told him he could not do any business before me,
or before my office as long as I was there.

Mr. McCoy. Did you go further and tell him that he would have
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